1994

Wilma R. Bugger v. Charles B. Bugger : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

Appellant brings this appeal from the decision of the Third Judicial District Court for Salt Lake County, State of Utah. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Utah Code Ann. §78-2a-3(2)(i) (1994).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW
AND STANDARD OF REVIEW

1. Did the lower court err, as a matter of Law, in entering the June 1994 Decree of Annulment, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law "Nunc Pro Tunc"? (R 133-36)

Determining whether the doctrine of Nunc Pro Tunc was properly applied is a question of law which is reviewed for correctness. Matter of Estate of Leone, 860 P.2d 973 (Utah App. 1993).

2. Did the lower court err, as a matter of Law, in setting aside Appellant's Amended Decree of Annulment, entered on or about July 22, 1993? (R 181-86)

Issues of Law are subject to de novo review by a appellate court, and the court gives no deference to the trial court's conclusions of law. Blue Cross Blue Shield v. State, 779 P.2d 634 (Utah 1989).

3. Did the lower court err, as a factual finding, in concluding there was "good cause" for a Decree of Annulment to be entered Nunc Pro Tunc in this matter? (R 133-36)

4. Did the lower court err, as a factual finding, in concluding the Respondent did not intentionally and willfully disregard Judge Conder's ruling in the 1983 proceedings? (R 239-42)

A finding of fact will be adjudged clearly erroneous if it violates appellate court standards, is inconsistent with the clear weight of the evidence, or, the reviewing court is "left with a definite and firm conviction that a mistake has been committed" even though there is evidence to support the finding. Cummings v. Cummings, 821 P.2d 472, 476 (Utah App. 1991) (citing State v. Walker, 743 P.2d 191, 193 (Utah 1987)). Issues of fact may be reversed on appeal if they are found to be clearly erroneous. Cornish Town v. Koller, 758 P.2d 919 (Utah 1988).

DETERMINATIVE STATUTORY PROVISIONS

The following statutory provision is controlling in this action:

Utah Code Ann. § 30-4a-1 (1983)

A court having jurisdiction may, upon its finding of good cause and giving of such notice as may be ordered, enter an order nunc pro tunc in a matter relating to marriage, divorce, legal separation or annulment of marriage.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

(a) Nature of the case.

This appeal is from entry of a domestic relations ORDER PURSUANT TO DEFENDANT'S ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE AND RELATED RELIEF AND DISCHARGE OF LIEN CLAIM, and the corresponding DECREE OF ANNULMENT (ENTERED NUNC PRO TUNC), entered by the Honorable Tyrone E. Medley, Judge for Third Judicial District Court, in and for Salt Lake County, State of Utah.

(b) Course of the Proceedings and Disposition Below.

In January of 1946, Respondent, Wilma R. Bugger (hereinafter "Wilma"), was awarded a Decree of Divorce that was to become absolute and final in July of 1946. However, in June of 1946, Wilma married Appellant, Charles B. Bugger (hereinafter "Charles"), in Las Vegas, Nevada.

On or about the 13th day of May, 1982, Wilma was awarded a Decree of Divorce from Charles, by default, from the Third Judicial District Court. Charles subsequently filed a Motion to Set Aside the default Decree.

On the 19th day of April, 1983, following a hearing on Charles' motion and his proposed Counterclaim for Annulment, the previous Decree of Divorce was set aside and the parties were

awarded a Decree of Annulment, to become final upon entry by the Court. Although Wilma's counsel was obliged to draft the documents, the final Decree of Annulment and accompanying Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law were never provided for entry by the court.

On or about April 13, 1993, the parties' final Decree of Annulment was ultimately entered, along with the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, all of which had been prepared from the transcript of the April 19, 1983, hearing. On or about July 22, 1993, these documents were Amended to include a legal description of the real property involved in the matter but were otherwise unchanged from the April 1993 documents.

Subsequent to entry of the Amended Decree of Annulment in July of 1993, an Order to Show Cause action against was filed, which was followed by a counter-motion to set aside the Amended Decree of Annulment. On the 1st day of March, 1994, the matter was certified for a hearing in front of a District Court Judge.

On the 19th day of April, 1994, the 1993 Decree(s) of Annulment, the Findings of Fact, and the Conclusions of Law were set aside. Wilma's counsel was again ordered to prepare a new Decree of Annulment and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, which were to be based upon the transcript of the 1983 hearing and were to be entered Nunc Pro Tunc.

On or about the 3rd day of June, 1994, Wilma's version of the Decree of Annulment and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

were entered Nunc Pro Tunc, even though these documents did not conform to the transcript of the 1983 ruling. Charles timely filed his appeal on this matter on or about the 30th day of June, 1994.

(c) Statement of Material Facts.

On or about January 21, 1946, Wilma was granted a divorce from a prior husband, with the provision that this Decree of Divorce would not become absolute and final until the expiration of six (6) months from the date the Decree was entered, roughly July 21, 1946. Notwithstanding Wilma's knowledge of the continuing validity of her marriage to her former husband, on or about June 10, 1946, and without Charles' knowledge of the divorce provision, Wilma entered into a marriage relationship with Charles.

In or around October of 1981, Wilma filed a divorce action against Charles, which was granted in May of 1982 by way of the court's entry of Charles' default. It was during the course of these proceedings that Charles learned that Wilma's prior marriage had not been legally dissolved prior to her marriage to Charles and a Motion to Set Aside the Default and proposed counterclaim for annulment was filed.

On April 19th of 1983, the Honorable Dean E. Conder, District Court Judge, presided over a hearing on the matter. At the close of this hearing, Judge Conder entered his oral findings for the record wherein he stated the Decree would be final upon his signature and entry by the court. In order to achieve an equitable property distribution in this complex situation, Judge Conder

basically took the position that he would do the best he could under the circumstances.

Wilma was awarded the marital residence, with the direction that upon Judge Conder's signing of the final Decree of Annulment, Wilma had six (6) months to pay Charles \$9,826.00, the balance of his equity in the property distribution scheme. Among the other provisions of Judge Conder's oral ruling was an award of a mobile home to Charles, which Judge Conder valued at \$7,000.00 for equity distribution purposes (Wilma herself had described the same mobile home as "very old" in financial declarations filed in both 1982 and 1983). Charles was also awarded a \$79.11 per month equity payment on a uniform real estate contract that had roughly nine more years to run.

Wilma's counsel failed to submit the final Decree of Annulment and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law for Charles' approval and entry by the Court upon Judge Conder's signature. However, pursuant to the 1983 ruling, Wilma made the monthly payments on the uniform real estate contract, until it ran out in roughly April of 1992, but Wilma never did pay Charles the \$9,826.00 she was ordered to pay for the balance of his equity interest in the marital property. Of course, Wilma's attorney never did submit the final Decree of Annulment for Judge Conder's signature so as to start the six month time frame from which Wilma's payment obligation would start to run, so it appeared there was no legal obligation for Wilma to make this payment.

In or around the summer of 1992, Charles learned that Wilma had sold the very mobile home that had been awarded to Charles in 1983. Wilma had neither the authority nor the consent to sell the mobile home, but she sold it nonetheless for approximately \$500.00. Upon learning of Wilma's unauthorized disposal of Charles' property, Charles sought the advice of an attorney who ultimately discovered that there had never been a Decree of Annulment entered by the court.

Following the attorney's direction, Charles tracked down the Court Reporter that worked with Judge Conder in 1983 and had Judge Conder's oral rulings transcribed. Charles then retained the services of Loreen Poff to assist in generating, from the transcript, the Decree of Annulment and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

In April of 1993, without the assistance of counsel, Charles submitted the proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and the final Decree of Annulment to Judge Medley, along with a photocopy of the transcripts upon which the documents were based. Judge Medley reviewed the transcript and determined the documents were consistent with Judge Conder's rulings and Judge Medley therefore signed the documents and they were entered by the court.

During this time period, Wilma was serving a mission for the L.D.S. church; she was not present in the State of Utah; and Wilma did not receive advance notice of Charles' Pro Se and ex-parte filings. Shortly after the court entered the Decree of Annulment,

in July of 1993 and still during Wilma's service for her church, Charles learned it was appropriate to include a legal description of real property in marriage dissolution documents so, still without the services of counsel and without notice to Wilma, Charles had the documents amended to include the legal description of the real property involved. Judge Medley again reviewed the documents and, determining that the legal description amendment did not change the substance of Judge Conder's 1983 ruling, Judge Medley signed and entered the Amended documents on July 22, 1993.

Following Wilma's return to the State of Utah, sometime around August of 1993, Charles filed a pro se Order to Show Cause against Wilma regarding her failure to pay Charles the equity he had been awarded in 1983 and Wilma's unauthorized and unilateral sale of his property, the mobile home. Charles prosecuted his Order to Show Cause pro se until Commissioner Atherton of the Third Judicial District Court entered her recommendation against Charles on or about the 1st day of March, 1994, and certified the matter for a hearing in front of Judge Medley. At that point in time, Charles again sought the assistance of counsel.

On the 19th day of April, 1994, the matter came back before Judge Medley on Charles' Order to Show Cause and on Wilma's Motion for Relief from the Orders of the Court. During this hearing, Judge Medley ruled (1) the final Decree of Annulment, Findings of Fact, and the Conclusions of Law were never entered by Judge Conder in 1983 or at any time thereafter; (2) that even though Judge

Medley personally reviewed the transcript and verified it was consistent with Charles' proposed documents, Judge Medley set aside the Amended Decree of Annulment for lack of "notice" to Wilma; (3) there was no willful disregard for Judge Conder's 1983 rulings; (4) each party was now precluded from remedy by reason of laches, inasmuch as the Decree was to be entered nunc pro tunc; (5) and Charles was ordered to remove his lien upon the residential property of Wilma in light of the no remedy ruling.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Under Utah law, it is entirely inappropriate for a trial court to enter an Order nunc pro tunc when the delay in rendering the final Decree or Judgment is based upon the negligence or failure of one of the parties to the action. Nunc pro tunc Orders are appropriate only when it is established that the delay was caused by circumstances and/or events entirely beyond the control of the parties to the action.

In the present case, the delay in entering the final Decree was directly caused by the failure of a party to follow through with their obligation - the final Decree was simply never submitted to the court. Therefore, a Decree of Annulment entered Nunc Pro Tunc in the present case was plain error and should be set aside.

Also, the lower court's determination that there was no willful disregard of Judge Conder's 1983 ruling was clearly erroneous when the record shows Wilma clearly knew she was obligated to pay Charles \$9,826.00 within six months of the

Annulment or put the marital residence up for sale. Charles did not receive the \$9,826.00 and the home was never placed on the market for sale. This is clear evidence of willful and knowing disregard for the orders of the court.

An additional err occurred when the lower court set aside the July 1993 Amended Decree of Annulment, based upon the court's conclusion that Wilma did not receive her constitutional or statutory right to "notice" before the Decree was entered. Inasmuch as the Amended Decree of Annulment entered in July of 1993 was prepared directly from the transcript of Judge Conder's oral rulings in 1983, Wilma had already received full, complete, and actual "notice" of the contents of the final Decree of Annulment when she voluntarily participated in the 1983 proceedings.

Finally, it is equally obvious that the 1994 documents entered by the lower court, nunc pro tunc, were not based upon the transcript of Judge Conder's ruling, as was ordered by Judge Medley in April of 1994. The 1994 Decree of Annulment and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law are clearly taken from the documents that were alleged to have been generated by Wilma's counsel in 1983. The 1994 documents contain several findings and conclusions that appear nowhere within the transcript, not to mention wording that is inconsistent with the transcript but almost identical to the language found in the alleged 1983 documents. Judge Medley ordered that documents be prepared consistent with the transcript; Judge Medley did not recognize the validity of the alleged 1983

documentation; it is therefore plain error for the lower court to have accepted and entered documentation inconsistent with that which was ordered and the 1994 nunc pro tunc Decree and accompanying documentation should therefore be set aside.

ARGUMENT

I. THE TRIAL COURT MISUSED ITS NUNC PRO TUNC POWER WHEN IT APPLIED THIS PROCESS TO THE JUNE 1994 DECREE OF ANNULMENT.

Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 30-4a-1 (1994), the trial court may enter an Order nunc pro tunc in a matter relating to the annulment of marriage IF the court finds "good cause" for such an entry. The definition and/or meaning of "good cause" hinges upon the particular facts of a case and therefore "must be determined on a case by case basis . . ." Horne v. Horne, 737 P.2d 244, 248 (Utah App. 1987). Additionally, the legislative foundation of the nunc pro tunc power was to at least attempt to avoid "obvious injustices" that would result without such authority. Id. The facts involved in the present case are inconsistent with the position that there is "good cause" for use of the nunc pro tunc power or that "obvious injustices" would result if the power were not applied.

A. There Simply Is Not Enough Legal Or Factual Support In This Case To Establish "Good Cause" For Use Of The Lower Court's Nunc Pro Tunc Power.

Generally speaking, courts applying the nunc pro tunc power have been upheld on appeal under circumstances where one of the parties to the action has died after the matter was submitted to

the court for a decision, but prior to the court actually rendering its decision, or, when a decision has actually been rendered by the court but through no fault of the parties, the court itself has failed to properly record the decision. See, e.g., Bagshaw v. Bagshaw, 788 P.2d 1057, 1060 (Utah App. 1990).

Neither of the parties in the present case have died, which leaves the second category as the generally accepted grounds for use of the nunc pro tunc power. Quoting from Mitchell v. Overman, 103 U.S. 62, 26 L.Ed. 369 (1881), this Court stated as follows:

The second category is based upon the principle that "where the delay in rendering judgment or decree arises from the act of the court, that is, where the delay has been for its convenience, or has been caused by the multiplicity or press of business or the intricacy of the questions involved, or of any other cause not attributable to the laches of the parties, but within the control of the court; the judgment or the decree may be entered retrospectively."

Bagshaw, 788 P.2d at 1060-61. (Emphasis in original). In reviewing the facts of its case, the Bagshaw Court commented

These general principles of the common law of nunc pro tunc are relevant, if not controlling, in a determination of good cause under section 30-4a-1. In this case, the court did not make the clerical error, but taking the facts in the light most favorable to the Husband, Husband did. It is undisputed that the court never received the written stipulation mentioned in the minute entry. Thus, this alone could support a finding of lack of "good cause" under section 30-4a-1.

788 P.2d at 1061.

As in the Bagshaw case, the 1983 court in the present case did not make any clerical errors, but taking the facts in the light most favorable to Wilma, Wilma did. It was Wilma's responsibility, through counsel, to draft the Decree of Annulment, get it approved

as to form, signed by Judge Conder and ultimately entered by the court. It is undisputed that Judge Conder never signed the final Decree of Annulment because it was never submitted for his review. Just as was found in the Bagshaw case, this alone could support a finding of lack of "good cause" under section 30-4a-1. Whether viewed as a factual matter or an issue of law, there is no "good cause" support for the nunc pro tunc ruling and it should be set aside.

B. Even Assuming "Good Cause" Is Supportable In The Present Case, The June 1994 Decree And The Accompanying Documents Were Not Consistent With The Only Actual Record Of The 1983 Ruling And Therefore The 1994 Documentation Does Not Meet The Nunc Pro Tunc Requirements.

In Preece v. Preece, the Utah Supreme Court stated "the function of a nunc pro tunc order is not to make an order now for then, but to enter now for then an order previously made." 682 P.2d 298, 299 (Utah 1984). The Court further stated that "nunc pro tunc is used to make the record speak the truth; it may not be used to correct the court's failure to speak." Id.

In the present case, the only absolute record available which reveals what was actually ordered by Judge Conder in 1983 is the transcript, which is the best possible source of information available. Unfortunately, the Decree of Annulment entered nunc pro tunc in June of 1994, as well as the documents accompanying the Decree, reveals several serious inconsistencies when compared to the transcript; although the 1994 documents are extremely consistent with the documentation allegedly prepared in 1983 by

Wilma's prior legal representative.

In light of the fact that Wilma's counsel was ordered in 1994 to prepare a Decree, Findings, and Conclusions that were consistent with the transcript, and inasmuch as the final product was an obvious disregard for that order and clearly covers issues and matters found nowhere within the transcript, the 1994 Decree of Annulment, entered nunc pro tunc, was plain and clear error. A document that does not reflect the actual order previously entered does not satisfy the requirements for use of the nunc pro tunc power. By using the power inappropriately, as in the present case, the very injustice that the power was meant to avoid was in fact generated. The 1994 documentation simply has no support under the nunc pro tunc criteria and, as a matter of law, the nunc pro tunc ruling should be set aside.

C. "Good Cause" Determinations Must Include A Consideration Of Good Faith Dealings And Wilma Knowingly And Willfully Disregarded Judge Conder's 1983 Orders Regarding The Property Distribution And Equity Equalization.

In defining "good cause" for nunc pro tunc purposes, it is important for the court to consider all factors that relate to methods of avoiding "obvious injustices" that could result from the inappropriate use of the nunc pro tunc power. See, Horne, 737 P.2d at 248. In the present case, Wilma's willful, knowing, and intentional disregard for Judge Conder's 1983 order shows conduct that would create an "obvious injustice" if she is allowed to avoid court ordered liability because of a failure on the part of her own

legal representative. Under the circumstances of this case, leaving the nunc pro tunc order in place presents just such an injustice.

Wilma claims she received a copy of the Decree of Annulment from her attorney in 1983. The alleged Decree of Annulment clearly states Wilma was to pay Charles \$9,000.00 plus within 180 days or she was ordered to place the home on the real estate market for immediate sale. Wilma also states that she assumed the Decree of Annulment had been signed and entered by the court; thus Wilma was under the impression that the Decree was a valid and legal order of the court. Assuming this to be true, Wilma's failure to pay Charles the \$9,000.00 plus within six months of the 1983 hearing date, and her failure to place the house on the market for sale following that six month period, is clear and indisputable evidence of a willful and knowing disregard for Judge Conder's order.

It would be entirely inappropriate and creates an obvious injustice if Wilma is now entitled to escape liability under Judge Conder's orders based on her own legal representative's failure to carry out his obligations and the nunc pro tunc orders now in place; especially in light of Wilma's admissions that she has already knowingly, intentionally, and wrongfully sold property that she knew was awarded to Charles in 1983. All documents filed in June of 1994, and entered nunc pro tunc, should be set aside as an abuse of discretion by the lower court and clearly inappropriate under the circumstances and undisputable facts of this case.

II. WILMA'S PERSONAL AND FIRST-HAND KNOWLEDGE OF JUDGE CONDER'S RULING IN 1983 CONSTITUTES "ACTUAL" NOTICE, THEREBY PRECLUDING WILMA'S CLAIMS OF DUE PROCESS VIOLATIONS AND/OR PREJUDICE.

The 14th amendment of the U.S. Constitution, as well as Article I of the Utah Constitution, impose procedural due process restrictions on the power of government to proceed against individuals or their property. At the heart of the due process clause is the implicit guarantee that an individual has the right to have an opportunity to appear and defend against any action which may deprive the individual of property or liberty. In the case at hand, Wilma cannot make a valid Due Process argument.

In Graham v. Sawaya, the Utah Supreme Court stated that the due process clause requires "notice to a party before his or her rights are affected by a judgment." 632 P.2d 851, 853 (1981). "Timely and adequate notice and an opportunity to be heard in a meaningful way are the very heart of procedural fairness." Nelson v. Jacobsen, 669 P.2nd. 1207, 1211 (Utah 1983). The 1993 proceedings for which Wilma complains of a lack of notice, thereby violating her Due Process rights, is not a new proceeding for judgment, nor an appeal of a proceeding's judgment, but was the mere filing of the documentation based upon and consistent with the transcripts of the original proceeding, which Wilma took part in.

As a party to the original proceeding, Wilma received fair and sufficient notice, was given ample opportunity to be heard, and to prepare for the defense of her person, position and property. Wilma is therefore charged with "actual" notice of that

proceeding's judgment and there is no Due Process violation based upon the entry of that judgment without notice in 1993.

As stated by the Court in Sundheim v. Reef Oil Corp., a "person is deemed to have 'constructive notice' when he is in possession of all the relevant facts and circumstances." 806 P.2d 503, 508 (Mont. 1991). Wilma was not only a party in the original proceeding and therefore had "all the relevant facts and circumstances," Wilma's counsel was given the responsibility for drafting and filing the final Decree of Annulment, the Findings of Fact, and the Conclusions of Law. Wilma's counsel may have failed to file the documents with the court, but Wilma still had full knowledge of the contents of Judge Conder's ruling. Thus, Wilma was not deprived of her Due Process rights in 1993 on the grounds of inadequate notice when Judge Medley entered the Decree of Annulment consistent with the transcript of Judge Conder's ruling in 1983. The Amended Decree of Annulment entered in July of 1993 should not have been set aside.

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