1994

Wilma R. Bugger v. Charles B. Bugger : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

VIII. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The Trial Court did not err in entering the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and the Decree of Annulment nunc pro tunc. "At common law, nunc pro tunc allowed a court to correct *its* earlier error or supply *its* omission so the record accurately reflected that which in fact had taken place." Bagshaw v. Bagshaw,

788 P.2d 1057 (Utah App. 1990). Plaintiff's former attorney of record had prepared the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and the Decree of Annulment and submitted the documents for entry, for an unknown reason the documents were never entered by the clerk or were lost after execution. Therefore, the Trial Court was not in error when it ordered the Findings and the Decree entered nunc pro tunc.

2. The Trial Court did not err when it set aside the Defendant's Amended Decree of Annulment and the Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. The Plaintiff was not given notice of the entry of these documents by the Defendant when the Defendant presented the documents for entry. Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 58A(d) requires a party to promptly give notice of the signing or entry of judgment to all other parties and to file proof of service of such notice with the court. The Defendant gave no such notice to the Plaintiff of the signing of the documents by Judge Medley nor did he file any proof of the giving of the notice with the clerk of the court. Judge Medley properly set aside the Decree for the Defendant's failure to follow the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

3. Judge Medley did not err when he found that there was good cause for entering the Decree of Annulment and the Findings of Fact nunc pro tunc. The Appeals Court will not reverse a Trial Court's determination of facts if the ruling is correctly based upon a proper ground. Peterson v. Peterson, 645 P.2d 37 (Utah App. 1991). In this case Judge Medley based his finding of good cause

on the fact that Judge Conder had made a judgment on the record at the 1983 trial on the merits.

4. The Trial Court did not err in finding that the Plaintiff did not intentionally and willfully disregard Judge Conder's ruling in the 1983 trial. The judge at the trial level is better able to determine the credibility of a witness. The Court of Appeals should assume that the Trial Court believed the evidence which supports the findings. Stone v. Stone, 431 P.2d 802, 20 Utah 2d 287 (1967). Judge Medley found that the Plaintiff did not intentionally disregard the 1983 order.

VIII. ARGUMENT

A. The Trial Court did not abuse its description when it entered the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and the Decree of Annulment nunc pro tunc.

The Trial Court may "enter an order nunc pro tunc in a matter relating to marriage . . . or annulment of marriage" upon the Court finding that good cause exists. See UCA §30-4a-1. This Court has stated that "'good cause' must be determined on a case by case basis, in light of all of the surrounding circumstances, as equity and justice require." Horne v. Horne, 737 P.2d 244 (Utah App. 1987). The Trial Court found the necessary good cause for entering the Decree and the Findings nunc pro tunc. Judge Medley specifically stated that he believed good cause existed "because Judge Conder actually made the decisions on these issues some ten years ago and I think the transcript clearly bears this out." (R. 260-261). The affidavit of Mr. Hanson also substantiates the fact that the pleadings were prepared and actually submitted to the

Court. What happens thereafter to the pleadings is beyond the control of the Plaintiff.

The finding of good cause by the Trial Court is specific and spells out what the facts are in the case which give rise to the entry of the Decree and the Findings nunc pro tunc. The Trial Court's factual finding needs to be given great deference by this court. The Utah Supreme Court states that they accord "considerable deference to findings and judgment of the trial court due to its advantageous position." Fletcher v. Fletcher, 615 P.2d 1218 (Utah 1980).

Judge Medley was able to review the case at length, make factual findings based upon the evidence presented to the court, listen to testimony by both parties and to make a determination about the credibility of the parties during and at the conclusion of the 1994 hearing. His determination was that good cause existed to allow him to enter the Decree and the Findings nunc pro tunc. This Court should give this decision the same deference to this finding.

The Defendant argues in his brief that the facts are not sufficient to support Judge Medley's decision. This argument cannot be upheld in light of the evidence of the case. The Defendant argues that it was the Plaintiff's responsibility to prepare the original Decree of Annulment and the original Findings of Fact, through the work of Mr. Hanson. The Defendant goes on to argue that it is "undisputed that Judge Conder never signed the final Decree of Annulment because it was never submitted for his

review." (Appellant's Brief at p. 13). The pleadings filed by the Plaintiff and the evidence presented show that this statement is inaccurate. Mr. Hanson filed an affidavit with the court in which he states "As the Plaintiff's Attorney of record I prepared the Decree of Annulment and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law as required by the Court and to forward them to the Court for entry." (R. 138).

The Plaintiff has supported her position that her attorney had properly followed through with the court's order from the 1983 trial. The Defendant's contention that good cause does not exist is unsupported by the facts and the pleadings prepared in this case. The Trial Court found "good cause" and this finding should be upheld by this Court.

The Defendant next argues that even if there is good cause for entering the Decree and the Findings nunc pro tunc the documents are not consistent with the 1983 ruling. This argument is moot. The defendant had the opportunity to object to the Decree and the Findings as they were prepared. The Decree and Findings were mailed to the Defendant's attorney of record David Brown on the 10th day of May, 1994. Judge Medley entered the Decree and signed the Findings on the 3rd day of June, 1994. The Defendant had notice and ample opportunity to object to the form of the Decree and the Findings. The Defendant, either by counsel or personally, did not object to the form when the documents were entered. The Defendant should not now be heard to complain that the documents are inaccurate even though he did not object to the documents when

they were presented to him. This Court should not entertain this issue when it was not raised at the trial court level where it could have been properly addressed.

Next, the Defendant argues that the Plaintiff willfully disobeyed Judge Conder's order from the 1983 trial. The Defendant argues that the facts are undisputed that the Plaintiff "knowingly, intentionally, and wrongfully" disobeyed the order of the Trial Court. (Appellant's Brief p. 14 and 15). This contention is against the factual findings of Judge Medley made at the conclusion of the hearing on Defendant's Order to Show Cause. Judge Medley specifically stated that "this Court is far from persuaded by the evidence that the plaintiff in this case intentionally and willfully attempted to disregard Judge Conder's ruling in this particular case." (R. 261, emphasis added).

The Defendant has the responsibility of showing this Court that the Trial Court's finding is clearly wrong and against the weight of the evidence. The Defendant must marshal "all evidence relevant to the finding and then shows the finding to be clearly erroneous." Barber v. Barber, 792 P.2d 134 (Utah App. 1990). Defendant does not provide this Court with any evidence, either in the record or now, which even hints that Judge Medley's finding would be an abuse of discretion. This Court must therefore presume that Judge Medley's findings are correct and in accord with the weight of the evidence as presented to the Court at the hearing.

B. The Plaintiff's personal and first-hand knowledge of Judge Conder's ruling in 1983 does NOT give the Plaintiff actual knowledge and notice of the Defendant's preparation and filing of a proposed Decree of Annulment and proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

The Defendant argues that the Plaintiff received "fair and sufficient notice, was given ample opportunity to be heard, and to prepare for the defense of her person, position and property. Wilma is therefore charged with 'actual' notice of that proceeding's judgment and there is no due process violation based upon the entry of that judgment without notice in 1993." (Appellant's brief p. 16 and 17). The Defendant relies upon a Montana State Supreme Court decision to say that the Plaintiff had constructive notice simply because she is a party to the case.

This argument is clearly against the Rules of Civil Procedure of the State of Utah. Rule 58A(d) requires a party to give "prompt notice of the signing or entry of judgment to all other parties and shall file proof of service of such notice with the clerk of the court." The Defendant did not give the Plaintiff any notice that he had prepared a proposed Decree and proposed Findings when he filed and had the Court enter the documents. The Defendant then prepared a proposed Amended Decree and Amended Findings. Again, the Defendant did not provide the Plaintiff with notice of the filing and the entry of these pleadings or decree.

The Plaintiff was not allowed an opportunity to be heard by the Court when the documents were entered since she did not have any knowledge of the Defendant's actions. The Plaintiff rights to defend and to be heard were violated by the Defendant's failure to

follow the Rules of Civil Procedure. The rules were adopted so that parties are given notice of the status of the case. Wilma believed that Mr. Hanson had prepared and filed the Decree of Annulment and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law some ten (10) years earlier. Both of the parties acted under the belief that if the Decree had been entered for those ten years. The Plaintiff cannot be charged with "actual knowledge" of the Defendant's actions ten years after the fact. The Trial Court properly set aside the Decree of Annulment and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law which had been entered without notice to the Plaintiff. Judge Medley found that the Plaintiff did not have actual knowledge of the entry of the Decree and the Findings the Defendant filed with the court. (R. 183). Again, if the Defendant wants this Court to overturn the findings of the Trial Court he must marshall all the evidence that shows the Trial Court's factual error. The Defendant makes an assertion that the Trial Court was wrong but does not offer any new evidence or any evidence from the record to show the findings are clearly wrong.

Judge Medley found the Defendant had violated the Plaintiff's due process rights by not giving the Plaintiff notice of the filing and entry of the Decree and Findings and the Amended Decree and Amended Findings. Judge Medley acted properly by setting aside the Decree and the Findings.

C. The Defendant's argument that the Lower Court erroneously set aside the 1993 Amended Decree of Annulment is moot in light of the Findings of the lower Court.

The Defendant argues that the Amended Decree and Amended findings should not have been set aside unless they are clearly erroneous. While this argument would be proper in most cases it is moot in this case. Judge Medley found that a due process violation occurred and set aside the Amended Decree and Amended Findings because of this violation. The Defendant's argument is without merit based upon the facts of the case and the specific finding of Judge Medley.

D. Judge Medley applied the equitable doctrine of Laches to both parties claims.

Judge Medley, at the conclusion of the 1994 evidentiary hearing on the Defendant's Order to Show Cause, found that the Defendant AND the Plaintiff had waited too long in bringing their actions before the Court. He therefore barred each party's claims due to the parties' failure to act when they properly should have acted.

The Defendant waited for ten (10) years before he tried to collect on the judgment. Utah Code Annotated Section 78-12-22 specifically states that a person has eight years to bring an action upon a judgment or decree. The Defendant brought an action to enforce the judgment ten (10) years after the judgment was entered by Judge Conder. Judge Medley found that Judge Conder had made findings and entered a judgment at the 1983 trial. As part of the 1994 hearing, Judge Medley also found that the Defendant made an unbelievable witness.

The Defendant should have brought an action within the specified time limit if he wanted to collect on the judgment. He did not and the Defendant cannot and should not be heard to complain due to his failure to act when he should have acted. Neither party should be allowed ten (10) years to prepare pleadings which they want to have enforced.

Judge Medley also found the Plaintiff was barred from her counterclaim to the Order to Show Cause because she had waited for too long to bring the counterclaim.

VIII. CONCLUSION


The Trial Court acted properly when it entered the Decree of Annulment and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law nunc pro tunc. The Court found that Judge Conder had made findings about the issues presented by the Defendant in his Order to Show Cause. If the Defendant had wanted to collect on the judgment of Judge Conder he knew where the courthouse was to check to make sure the Decree had been entered. The Defendant also had an attorney he could have checked with to determine if the Decree had been entered. However, the Defendant did nothing for ten (10) years.